DEVELOPMENT OF THE VILLAGE, PART 12
CHURCH LANE

This lane is shown in Henderson's plan of the development of the village in 1860 and was originally intended to run right down to Aquithie Road.  It provided a rear entrance for the properties fronting on to High Street, thus giving access, away from the prying eyes of Victorian society, for the lower class of citizen and also for the pony and all the trappings that went along with that hierarchy.  Oh yes! Ponies were certainly kept and the stabling arrangements may still be seen at some of the properties. For those more mature in the community, Sophia Adam of Greenfield used to keep a cow.
Across the lane, leases were granted from 1889, the first being for the present day Dunvegan (see February 2016).  The plot adjacent to this was leased to William McDonald, baker, and his spouse Mrs Annie Campbell or Guthrie or McDonald in February 1890.  William was the son of John McDonald who started a bakery in what became the bar of the Gushet Neuk bar, but he developed a skin disorder and had to give up the baking trade. He became an insurance agent.

On the same day the adjacent plot (Dunniekeir Cottage) was leased to William Alexander Diack, who was termed as a mason in Kemnay:  Despite the fact that he was a mason, he was also tenant farmer at Pictillum Farm and in February 1890 (the same day as he leased the land for Dunniekeir Cottage) he leased land at Pictillum and erected the house known as Essie Cottage. During his tenancy at Pictillum he built a new farmhouse (1895) and also replaced parts of the steading.
The plot of land at the top of the lane was leased to Allan Bruce, carpenter, Kemnay and his wife Christina Cran Low on 17th February 1890.  Bruce obtained a mortgage of £50 from Aberdeen Property Investment Building Society (which he paid off in 1904) and proceeded to build the property known as Nithsdale.  

It will be remembered that Allan Bruce was one of the group of people who moved from Old Deer to work at the quarries and who all left their mark on the village. In March 1899 he leased the plot of land across Church Lane from the Free Church and built the Clifton (Kinkellian) for his own use.  Sadly, Allan died quite suddenly on 13th November 1915 while out canvassing for Lord Derby's Scheme, this was an attempt to increase recruitment for WW1 and avoid the need for conscription by allowing men to voluntarily attest for service at a later date. 

